Public Document Pack
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

EXECUTIVE
AGENDA
Venue:
Date:
Time:
Contact Officer:

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore
will not take place in a physical location.
Tuesday, 26th January, 2021
2.00 pm
Clive Willoughby
Tel: 01946 598328

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 8
December 2020.

3.

Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:

4.

Written Questions from Members of the Public

5.

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committee

6.

Forward Plan

13 - 18

7.

Coastal Community Forest

19 - 22

8.

Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme Funding Submission

23 - 26

9.

Cleator Moor and Millom Town Deals

10.

Date and Time of Next Meeting:
The next meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday
2 February 2021 at 10:00am. This will be a virtual meeting.

1-6

7 - 12

To Follow

NOTES
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items. If you have a
query on the meeting arrangements or if you require a copy of this document
in a different format (large print, braille, audio tape, electronic formats such
as CD or in a different language) please contact the relevant officer as shown
below.

Call-In
Most of the decisions taken by the Executive can be ‘called in’, in accordance
with Council’s Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision notice being
published. It is expected that the decision notice will be published on 29
January 2021. Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in any
decision is 5.00pm on 5 February 2021.

Contacts:

Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail:
clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

Agenda Item 2

Notice of Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers
by the Executive on Tuesday, 8 December 2020
NOTES: The deadline for calling in any of these decisions is 5.00 pm on Friday 18 December 2020.
A copy of the Executive agenda setting out all the reports has previously been circulated to all
Members of the Council.
Officers are asked to read this Decision Notice, as it is the responsibility of the Officer named in
the Action Column to ensure that the appropriate action is taken.
If you require further information on any issue please contact the Officer named in the right hand
column. For general information or to obtain a copy of any documentation please contact
Member Services.
Present: Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors David Moore, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.
Officers Present: Pat Graham, Chief Executive; Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services
and Commercial Strategy; Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources; Clinton Boyce, Solicitor;
Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer and Rose Blaney, Electoral Services Officer .
Also Present: Councillors Gwynneth Everett, Michael McVeigh and Felicity Wilson.

EXE
Apologies for Absence
20/192
There were no Apologies for Absence were received for this meeting.
EXE
Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meetings held on 6 November 2020,
20/193 10 November 2020 and 25 November 2020.
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meetings held on6 November 2020, 10 November
2020 and 25 November 2020 be signed by the Chair as a correct record.
EXE
Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:
20/194
No Declarations of Interest were made at this meeting.

EXE
Written Questions from Members of the Public
20/195
No questions had been received from Members of the public.

Page 1

Item
No.
EXE
20/196

Decision
REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

CLT Lead
N\A

To receive any recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.
The Deputy Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee provided an
update from the meeting held on 26 November 2020 and stated her wish
that Task and Finish Groups move forward with the tasks on the OSC
Work Programme.
Decision
The update from the Deputy Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
be noted.
Reason for Decision
Comments received from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are taken
into account when Executive decisions are made.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
None

Item
No.
EXE
20/197

Decision
FORWARD PLAN

CLT Lead
N\A

To consider the Mayor’s Executive Forward Plan.
Decision
RESOLVED - that the forward plan be agreed, subject to the Mayor being
shown as the portfolio holder for the Copeland Economic Vision 2040.
Reason for Decision
The Local Authority (Executive Arrangements (Access to information
(England) Regulations 2012 requires a forward plan to be prepared in
respect of key decisions. The work plan is good practice.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
N/A

Page 2

Item
No.
EXE
20/198

Decision
DEPARTMENT FOR TRANSPORT - E SCOOTER TRIALS
The Department for Transport (DfT) invited local authorities and e-scooter
operators to submit proposals to be invited in trials in their areas.
On the 28th August the Council expressed an interest in taking
part in the trials. This was based on a proposal from Ginger
Teleporter Limited (‘Ginger’) to design, manage and report on
the trial proposed to be run in Whitehaven.
The DfT responded to the expression of interest on the 11 th November by
issuing the Copeland Borough Council E-scooter Trial Order 2020.
The results of the trials, held nationally, will create the evidence necessary
to guide final decisions about whether and, if so, how to fully legalise escooters.
Decision
RESOLVED: that
a) the report be noted,
b) Cleaner and Greener Energy Solutions be allocated to the Portfolio
Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services (Councillor David
Moore), and
c) Authority be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with
the Mayor, the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer to
(i)
Enter into a memorandum of understanding with Ginger
Teleporter Limited to record the basis upon which they will
collaborate with each other on the E Scooter Trials Project;
and
(ii)
To deal with any other actions needed to deliver the E
Scooter Trials Project which are not otherwise covered by
delegated powers provided that such other actions are
withing the approved budget.
Reason for Decision
This is a trial of an alternative energy clean transport type, piloted to
assist the Government in understanding the feasibility of e-scooters. It
provides the community with an opportunity to try and experience escooters. If it is successful then it might be rolled out on a national basis as
a permanent alternative form of transport.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Page 3

CLT Lead
Pat Graham
Chief Executive

Item
No.
EXE
20/199

Decision
ADOPTION OF THE CUMBRIA COASTAL STRATEGY

CLT Lead
Pat Graham
Chief Executive

Executive was asked to consider and approve the adoption of the Cumbria
Coastl Strategy.
Decision
RESOLVED – that the Cumbria Coastal Strategy be approved.
Reason for Decision
The proposal will help support the Council in delivering the actions set out
in Shoreline Management Plan 2, adopted by the Council in 2010, in
following the process to obtain grant funding to deliver coast protection
works along the Copeland coast.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Item
No.
EXE
20/200

Decision
LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM

CLT Lead
Pat Graham
Chief Executive

Executive was asked to note the action proposed to be taken by the Chief
Executive, in accordance with a previous delegation given by the
Executive, to submit on behalf of the Council a final proposal for unitary
local government in Cumbria to be submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government (‘MHCLG’) for the creation
of two unitary councils and the dissolution of the existing county council
and six district councils.

Decision
RESOLVED – that the proposed decision to be taken by the Chief Executive
after the Executive meeting, pursuant to statement 20/174 (6th
November 2020), as attached to the report, to enable the Council submit
a final business case and proposal to the Secretary of State for Housing,
Communities and Local Government requesting that due consideration be
given to the creation of two unitary councils in Cumbria as set out in the
decision/proposal, be noted.

Page 4

Reason for Decision
Reorganising local authorities, particularly into a unitary
authority, will provide an opportunity to optimise efficient
services, streamline operations and rationalise costs of local
government. It is important for the residents of Copeland, and
indeed Cumbria, that these benefits are achieved, whilst
recognising the communities of the county, the geography of
the county, the economy of the county and ensuring that local
democratic accountability is maintained. It is believed this can
be achieved if two unitary authorities are created in Cumbria.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Item
No.

Decision

Action by

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
N/A
Decision
RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the remaining items
of business in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 3 of part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972 (as amended).
Reason for Decision
N/A
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
N/A

Page 5

Item
No.
EXE
20/201

Decision
UPDATE ON COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL'S DEVELOPMENT OF A
BUSINESS CASE FOR WHITEHAVEN AGAINST THE FUTURE HIGH STREETS
FUND

CLT Lead
Pat Graham
Chief Executive

Executive were asked to consider an update on the business case for
Whitehaven against the Future High Streets Fund.
Decision
RESOLVED – that Recommendations a), b) and c) as set out in the Agenda
report be agreed.
Reason for Decision
Copeland Borough Council has submitted to the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (‘MHCLG’) a full Business Case for
investment in Whitehaven through the Future High Streets Fund (‘FHSF’).
The benefit to Copeland residents from the development of an evidenced
case for investment in Whitehaven is potential significant funding into the
town, both through Government, public and private sector partners. The
regeneration of our town centres will bring improved economic prosperity
with a knock-on increase in jobs, new businesses and visitors to the area.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

EXE
Date and Time of Next Meeting:
20/202
It was noted that the next meeting of the Executive would be held on Tuesday 19 January
2021 at 10:00am. This will be a virtual meeting.

The Meeting closed at 11.00 am

Mayor

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
Executive 26/01/21
Report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
LEAD MEMBER:
LEAD OFFICER:

REPORT AUTHOR:

Cllr John Kane
Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)
James Young, Scrutiny Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
This report has the recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC) on the reports presented to the Committee on 26th
November 2020.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends that the Executive
note its report.

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This report has the recommendations from the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (OSC) on the reports presented to the
Committee on 26th November 2020. Those reports were:
 Beacon Museum Verbal Update
 Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG)
 2020/21 Council Performance Plan – Quarter 2

Page 7

2.0

DISCUSSION

2.1

The Director of Financial Resources presented an update to the
Committee on the Beacon Museum. The Director gave an overview
of the situation during both lockdowns during the pandemic and the
plans for future financial stability.

2.2

Members asked questions relating to the currently vacant café on
the site and the possibility of a Santa’s Grotto. The Director stated
that there had been interest from local food outlets in the area and
there could be business on site by Easter 2021. The Committee
requested that their thanks be passed to the staff at the Beacon for
all of their hard work through a difficult year.

2.3

The Director of Corporate Resources and Commercial Strategy
presented the 2020/21 Council Performance Plan – Quarter 2 to the
Committee. Councillors asked questions on many aspects of the
report and asked for more detail in relation to recycling. Residual
Waste per Household (Kg) was identified as increasing and members
asked if this would put pressure on the Council’s waste services. The
Director stated that the increase has been a well-documented side
effect of the Covid-19 pandemic but there would be a trade off on
the impact of office and trade waste, which has decreased. The
increase in recycling has not had a detrimental effect on waste
services and services are still operating to a high standard as
reflected in the report.

3.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

3.1

Joint Monitoring Officer/Legal comments: ‘No legal issues arise from
the report itself. Any legal issues arising from the specific projects
referred to in the report will be dealt with as they arise.’

3.2

The Section 151 Officer’s comments: ‘There are no financial
implications arising from this recommendation.’

Page 8

Executive 26/01/21
Report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
LEAD MEMBER:
LEAD OFFICER:

REPORT AUTHOR:

Cllr John Kane
Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)
James Young - Scrutiny Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
This report has the recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC) on the reports presented to the Committee on 17th
December 2020.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends that the Executive
note its report.

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This report has the recommendations from the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (OSC) on the reports presented to the
Committee on 17th December 2020. Those reports were:





Update on Town Centre Funding
Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG)
Housing
Social Prescribing Presentation

Page 9

2.0

DISCUSSION

2.1

The Chief Executive gave an update to the Committee on the
progress of the Whitehaven Future High Street Fund and the Cleator
Moor and Millom Town Deals. The Area Manager for Copeland from
Cumbria County Council attended to give an update to the
Committee regarding Egremont and their inclusion in the Borderland
Project.

2.2

Councillor Pollen, who had put forward the recommendation from
the previous meeting asking the officers to present their updates to
the Committee at this meeting, thanked them for their detailed
reports. Councillor Pollen asked questions on the involvement of
Egremont Town Council in the proposed Borderlands Project. The
Area Manager for Copeland confirmed that either Cumbria County
Council or the consultancy firm, Thinking Places Consultancy, would
contact the Council in the New Year to engage with them on the
project.

2.3

The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager gave a brief update
on the Housing to the Committee. It was stated that there was a
large increase in Copeland in homelessness during the first lockdown,
500%, but due to the effective action taken by the Council this was
did not become an issue and was resolved. Member passed on their
gratitude to the Housing Team for all of their hard work, especially
through the pandemic and the two lockdowns.

2.4

The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion manager, Social prescribing
Officer and the Community Resilience & Social Inclusion Team Leader
gave a presentation on Social Prescribing in Copeland. The
presentation introduced Social Prescribing and its importance to
Copeland and the role of the team in the Community.

2.5

Community Resilience & Social Inclusion Team Leader sated that the
aim of Social Prescribing was to work together, with multiple
partners and the wider community, to find a solution for all of the
community. The Committee thanked the team for their vital work.

Page 10

The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager assured OSC that
they would be regularly updated on Social Prescribing throughout
the year.
3.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

3.1

Joint Monitoring Officer/Legal comments: ‘No legal issues arise from
the report itself. Any legal issues arising from the specific projects
referred to in the report will be dealt with as they arise.’

3.2

The Section 151 Officer’s comments: ‘There are no financial
implications arising from this recommendation.’

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Executive 26 January 2021
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.

Page 13

A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made.
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.

Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not
containing confidential or exempt information.

Agenda Item 6

Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.

Page 14

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Moss Bay Enterprise
Trust

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham –
Chief Executive

Yes

No

2020/21 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 3

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2020/21 Finance
Report –
Quarters 2 & 3

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Health and Safety
Monitoring Half
Yearly Report

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham –
Chief Executive

No

No

Independent
Remuneration Panel
Report

Council

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Council
9 February 2021

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Draft Budget
(incl Amendments to
Discretionary Relief
Policy, Discount and
Premium Policy, Pay
Policy Statement)

Executive
2 February 2021

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

OSC
4 February 2021
Council

Council
9 February 2021

Page 15

Budget
Council
(incl Amendments to
Discretionary Relief
Policy, Discount and
Premium Policy, Pay
Policy Statement)

Council (Prov)
23 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Constitution
Refresh/Update

Council

Council
23 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Constitution –
Council
Financial Regulations

Council
23 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Page 16

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Copeland
Community Lottery

Executive Executive
16 March 2021

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2020/21 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 4

Executive Executive
May 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2020/21 Finance
Report – Quarter 4

Executive Executive
May 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Outside Bodies
Annual Report

Council

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

OSC
May 2021
Council
June 2021

Annual Scrutiny
Report

Council

OSC
May 2021
Council
June 2021

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Page 17

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 1

Executive Executive
August 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 1

Executive Executive
August 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 2

Executive Executive
November 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 2

Executive Executive
November 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Executive 260121
COASTAL COMMUNITY FOREST – EXPRESSION OF INTEREST
LEAD MEMBERS
LEAD OFFICER
REPORT AUTHOR

Mike Starkie, Elected Mayor of Copeland
Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Manager

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?
The specific benefits of a Coastal Community Forest in Cumbria will be shaped in response to local
need and long term aspirations.
Benefits associated with community forests generally include:









Creation of healthy, inspiring and resilient places for communities and nature to live side by
side
Connection of urban populations with the wider landscape, for leisure and recreation
Helping communities to respond and adapt to climate change
Responsiveness to societal and policy developments – meeting the community’s long-term
wellbeing and environmental needs
Trees meet the community’s needs for a safe, attractive place, good health, economic
development and connection with thriving nature
Flood resilience and management
Biodiversity enhancement
Community participation in place-shaping

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
This report introduces the concept of community forests and the opportunity for Cumbria to develop
a plan for a Coastal Community Forest, which would support the Council’s new Climate Policy and
sustainability framework set out in the Copeland Vision 2040.
The paper makes recommendation to Executive to support the submission of an Expression of Interest
for the Coastal Community Forest in Cumbria to be considered as one of the next three community
forests in England.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the Executive:
1. Notes the information in this paper;
2. Supports the submission of an Expression of Interest for the Coastal Community Forest to be
considered as one of the next three community forests in England.

Page 19

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1.

The Community Forest programme was established in 1990 by the Countryside Commission as
a pilot project to demonstrate the potential contribution of environmental improvement to
economic and social regeneration. Since then, 10 Community Forests have been created across
England.

1.2.

England’s Community Forests now form the country’s biggest environmental regeneration
initiative and the programme is highlighted as part of the Government’s 25 Year Plan for the
Environment.

1.3.

Community Forests are a long-term investment in places, delivered by partnerships of public,
private and voluntary sectors, with the following aims:




Support regeneration and growth - Making towns and cities more attractive places in which
to live, work and do business; attracting new investment and creating jobs
Support local communities - Harnessing the enthusiasm, commitment, and knowledge of
local people; helping them improve their local area and enhancing health and wellbeing
Creating Better Places – Enriching and enhancing biodiversity the environment, creating
new facilities for recreation and leisure and making our towns and cities more sustainable

1.4.

There is opportunity for the Coastal Community Forest in Cumbria to become one of the next
three to be developed.

2.

DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

2.1.

In October and November, two meetings were held between local partners including the
Council, Allerdale and Barrow Borough Councils, the National Trust, Forestry England,
Woodland Trust, Cumbria Woodlands, Cumbria Wildlife Trust, Lake District National Park
Partnership and BEC. Cumbria County Council and the Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership have
also been engaged.

2.2.

Through these meetings, an initial plan of action was agreed:



To develop an initial expression of interest to be submitted to the Community Forests
Trust in January 2021
To then develop a full bid including agreed (in principle) governance arrangements

2.3.

Should the bid be successful, a Community Forest Plan would need to be developed.
Governance and management arrangements would be agreed by the partners and the planning
authorities would have a central role.

3.

COASTAL COMMUNITY FOREST

3.1.

No specific sites have yet been identified, but the areas to be explored in Copeland would be
broadly those between the boundary of the Lake District National Park and the coast.

3.2.

Any future Community Forest Plan would be consulted upon, ensuring that the views of
residents, businesses and stakeholders are taken into account.

Page 20

3.3.

Should the Coastal Community Forest submission be successful, it was suggested that this
becomes a workstream of the county-wide decarbonisation/climate programme being led by
the Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership, of which Copeland Borough Council is currently a
supporting partner.

4.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS TO CONSIDER

4.1.

Do nothing: this would represent a missed opportunity to deliver against the commitments
made in the Council’s Climate Policy and Copeland Vision 2040.

5.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

5.1.

Monitoring Officer/Legal Comments: From a legal perspective it is too early to identify any legal
issues which may arise. Looking at the list of existing community forests this seems to be a mix
of external charitable trusts or local authority run forests some receiving grants of millions of
pounds. Legal issues will arise and these will be dealt with at the appropriate time. These could
include company/charity incorporation, grant funding conditions, land disposals/acquisitions,
rights of way/relationship with coastal margin, etc. For the time being, provided that there are
no new budget implications, the matter is confirmed as an executive function.

5.2.

Section 151 Officer Comments:

5.3.

EIA Comments: N/A

5.4.

Policy Framework Comments: N/A

6.

RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

6.1.

There are no new resource requirements for the council associated with this proposal at this
time.

6.2.

Relevant officers from across the Council have been asked to provide information in support of
the Expression of Interest.

6.3.

Should a Community Forest Partnership be formed, it would have responsibility for determining
the resource requirements to support development and delivery of the Community Forest Plan
and subsequent forest management.

7.

HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED

7.1.

The Nuclear Sector Development Manager will continue to lead the Council’s engagement with
local partners to develop and submit the Expression of Interest. Over time, if the Coastal
Community Forest bid is successful, it is envisaged that this would transition into the leadership
of the Strategic Planning team.

7.2.

Responsibility for development of any future Community Forest Plan and implementation of
partnership and management arrangements will be subject to appropriate governance.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Executive 260121
PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME FUNDING SUBMISSION
LEAD MEMBERS
LEAD OFFICER
REPORT AUTHOR

Councillor Andy Pratt, Portfolio Holder for Environment
Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Manager

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?
Securing funding from the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme will support implementation of the
Council’s carbon reduction efforts.
The proposed decarbonisation scheme will deliver:



A near net zero carbon swimming pool for the Borough
A pioneering exemplar project from which to build and demonstrate best practice

Deliverables will include:




A building (historically heated by gas) that is no longer reliant on fossil fuel heating
Significantly reduced carbon footprint for the site
A focal point for the Council’s ongoing ambitions to address carbon emissions

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
This report provides an update to Executive on the work undertaken to date to explore energy
efficiency and low carbon energy generation opportunities across the Council’s property and estates.
As a result of this work, an opportunity has arisen to submit an application to the Government’s Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme. This paper makes Executive aware of the scheme that has been
proposed and for which a funding bid has been submitted.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the Executive:
1. Notes the report and supports, in principle, the project outlined in the report;
2. Recommends to Council that the project is supported and that, subject to recommendation 3, that
the Council accepts any grant from the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
(BEIS)/Salix, to fund the project and that the Council’s capital budget and programme be adjusted
accordingly; and
3. That recommendation 2 be conditional on the Solicitor, the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring
Officer, the Elected Mayor and the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, being satisfied
that (a) any BEIS grant conditions are acceptable and that financial regulation E5.12 is otherwise
satisfied; (b) that a satisfactory variation to the leisure management agreement and the swimming
pool lease, insofar as is necessary, is entered into with Greenwich Leisure Limited to enable the
project to proceed; and (c) that any other land issues arising the project involving third parties are
satisfactorily resolved.

Page 23

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1.

This paper summarises work to date to identify opportunities for energy efficiency and
generation across the Council’s property and estate, and introduces a scheme that has been
developed in order to apply for Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme funding.

2.

DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

2.1.

In December 2019, the Council was awarded a Local Government Association Productivity
Expert Grant for a study into energy efficiency and renewable energy generation opportunities
across the Council’s property and estate.

2.2.

This study has resulted in the production of a report, which identifies such opportunities and
prioritises them based on carbon reduction potential and cost saving/revenue generation.

2.3.

One of the opportunities identified in the report is for heat decarbonisation interventions at the
Swimming Pool in Whitehaven. The Swimming Pool, operated by Greenwich Leisure Limited,
accounts for 27% of the emissions associated with the Council’s properties, so is a priority for
emissions reduction.

2.4.

The scheme includes installation of a Ground Source Heat Pump and building efficiency
upgrades, with a potential option to also install solar photovoltaic (PV) arrays for electricity
generation and storage via battery. The Council’s consultants are developing technical
specifications for the technologies to be installed.

3.

PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME

3.1.

In 2020, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has launched the
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme, for capital energy efficiency and heat decarbonisation
projects within public sector non-domestic buildings.

3.2.

The scheme, which is administered by Salix, aims to deliver:



Stimulus to the energy efficiency and low carbon heat sectors, supporting jobs
Significant carbon savings in the public sector

3.3.

The scheme allows eligible bodies (including local authorities) to apply for a grant to finance up
to 100% of the costs of capital energy saving projects that meet the scheme criteria.

3.4.

The nature of the proposed interventions means that the scheme meets the highest priority
Category 1 criteria for the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme:
“Technologies that directly contribute to the heat decarbonisation of a building by installation
of a low carbon heating technology. For example, heat pumps and connections to low carbon
heat networks.“

3.5.

Therefore, a bid has been submitted to request 100% of the capital required to make the
interventions described at the Swimming Pool.

Page 24

3.6.

The deadline for this round of funding was 11th January and successful bidders will be notified
by the 29th January. Successful projects must be completed by 30th September 2021.

4.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS TO CONSIDER

4.1.

Do Nothing: To do nothing would be to miss opportunity to secure a source of funding by which
to implement a project that will contribute to both the Council’s climate commitments and
reduction of costs. This option is not recommended.

5.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

5.1.

Monitoring Officer Comments:

5.2.

Legal Comments: The Executive on the 16th March 2020 agreed to the extension of the leisure
management contract with Greenwich Leisure Limited (‘GLL’) until the 31st March 2022. The
proposed works need to be completed by the 30th September 2021. GLL’s consent will therefore
be needed to the project. Consequential amendments are likely to be needed to the leisure
management contract and also the lease between the Council and GLL of the pool. Initial
discussions with GLL are favourable. The recent extension to the pool was provided with the aid
of Sport England grant and there is a restriction on title against disposal. If the project involves
a disposal (e.g. a long lease of roof space upon which solar panels are located) of that part of
the premises which were grant aided then Sport England’s consent might be required. Finally
there is a reservation of mines and minerals – if the mines and minerals are to be interfered
with (e.g. through the ground source heat pump) then a release will be required from the owner
of the mines and minerals (Lord Lonsdale).
In respect of funding it is not yet known how much grant will be received, assuming the
application is successful. It will be above £200,000. Therefore the Council’s consent to receipt
of the external funding will be required and financial regulation E5.12 complied with. This
requires that the funds are acquired only to meet the priorities within the approved policy
framework; that any match funding requirements are given due consideration prior to entering
into long term agreements and that future revenue budgets reflect these requirements;
management fees are charged for the costs of administration (not applicable); and that any claw
back conditions are considered prior to accepting the grant.
With regard to procurement of the works contract standing orders will need to be complied
with as part of any eventual procurement.
The recommendations ensure that the above requirements are addressed.

5.3.

Section 151 Officer Comments: GLL has agreed in principle to make adjustments to the contract
to ensure financial savings arising from the project are retained by the Council. Other financial
comments are contained in the report.

5.4.

EIA Comments: N/A

5.5.

Policy Framework Comments: N/A

Page 25

6.

RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

6.1.

Should the funding bid be successful, a team within the council has been identified to deliver
the project, led by the Property and Estates Manager.

6.2.

The savings generated by the use of the funding must be retained by the public sector, and
therefore the existing contract between the Council and facility operator would need to be
amended accordingly. This will require input from the Property & Estates team and Legal
services.

7.

HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED

7.1.

Should the funding bid be successful, the resulting project will be managed in line with the
Council’s Project Management Framework and subject to appropriate governance.

7.2.

The key driver of the LGA productivity expert programme is to create significant savings or
revenue generation over a 4 year period, so any projects resulting from opportunities identified
by the study will be subject to appropriate management and governance arrangements.

Page 26

